
FULL COUNCIL

Please note that this Meeting will be recorded for subsequent broadcast via the 
Authority’s Internet Site. 

 
The images and sound recording may also be used for training purposes 

within the Authority.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the 
Chamber and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are 

consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings as outlined above.  

Dear Sir/Madam

You are hereby summoned to attend a Meeting of the Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Council to be held at the COUNCIL CHAMBER on Wednesday, 20th February, 
2019 at 5.30 pm being a Meeting for the following purposes.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
Members are reminded of their personal responsibility 
to declare any personal and prejudicial interest in 
respect of matters contained in this agenda in 
accordance with the provisions of the Local 
Government and Finance Act 1992 relating to Council 
Tax, the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct

Note:



(a) Members are reminded that they must identify 
the item number and subject matter that their 
interest relates to and signify the nature of the 
personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting as a 
consequence of the disclosure of a prejudicial 
interest they must notify the Chair when they 
leave

OPEN SESSION

Presentation

3. Bridgend Transition Programme 
To receive a Briefing from Alison Williams Chief 
Executive Officer, Cwm Taf Health Board

Minutes

4. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
To approve as accurate the Minutes of the following 
Meetings:

4.a  Full Council: 09/01/2019 5 - 8

4.b  Full Council: 16/01/2019 9 - 12

4.c  Cabinet: 16/01/2019 13 - 16

4.d  Scrutiny : Joint Committee: 09/01/2019 17 - 20

4.e  Audit: 09/01/2019 21 - 22

4.f  Scrutiny : Joint Committee: 23/01/2019 23 - 26

4.g  Audit: 23/01/2019 27 - 30

4.h  Planning, Regulatory and Licensing: 10/01/2019 31 - 32

4.i  Planning, Regulatory and Licensing: 06/02/2019 33 - 36

4.j  Scrutiny : Learning and LAESCYP: 26/11/2018 37 - 40

4.k  Scrutiny : Learning and LAESCYP: 17/12/2018 41 - 44



4.l  Scrutiny : Learning and LAESCYP: 14/01/2019 45 - 48

4.m  Scrutiny : Regeneration and Public Protection: 
15/01/2019

49 - 52

Committee Report(s)

5. Post Entry Training Policy and Sponsorship Policy 
To consider report of the Chief Executive 53 - 86

6. Help for Pensioners Scheme 2018 
To consider report of the Deputy Chief Executive 87 - 92

CLOSED SESSION

7. Exempt 
In order for the following to be considered in private, it 
is suggested that the public be excluded from the 
Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraph 14 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 
100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

8. Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 – 
Update 2 
To consider report of the Chief Executive 93 - 108

9. Update on the Reconfiguration of Adult Accommodation 
Services 
To consider report of the Chief Officer Social Services 109 - 122

Information Report(s)

10. YMCA Redevelopment 
To receive report of the Deputy Chief Executive 123 - 128

RE-OPENED SESSION

Other Items



11. To deal with any other urgent business or 
correspondence 

12. To receive communications from Her/His  Worship the 
Mayor 

By order of the Mayor

GARETH CHAPMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


MINUTES OF MEETING

FULL COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 9TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors   C Tovey (Chair)
                      H Barrett (Vice-Chair)

Councillors   A Barry, C J Barry, B Carter, D Chaplin, M Colbran, 
C Davies, J Davies, L Davies, E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, 
D Hughes, D Isaac, S Jago, C T Jones, D Jones, H R Jones, 
G Lewis, L Mytton, K O'Neill, G Richards, D Roberts, T Rogers, 
D Sammon, W R Smith, J Thomas, G Thomas, I Thomas and 
S Thomas

Officers:
G W Chapman (Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal 
and Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), E Cooper 
(Deputy Chief Executive), S Jones (Head of Finance), 
M Thomas (Head of Corporate Services), L Curtis Jones (Chief 
Officer (Social Services)), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), 
C Evans (Chief Officer (Neighbourhood Services)), A Owen 
(Chief Officer (Regeneration and Public Protection)), A Mogford 
(Business Change Manager), F Donnelly (H R Manager), 
A Taylor (Democratic Services Team Leader) and C Dinham 
(Communications, Consultation and Engagement Manager)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

677  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J 
Amos, Councillor P Brown and Councillor T Skinner.

678  Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made.

Page 5

Agenda Item 4a



679  Exempt Resolved that:

The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 13 and 14 under Part 4 of Schedule 
12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Order of Items

The Mayor advised that Item 5 would be considered before Item 4.

680  Temporary Increased 
Enhancement of the 
Voluntary 
Redundancy/Voluntary 
Early Retirement 
Package (VR/VER) –   
Senior Management 
Team (JNC Chief 
Officer & Chief 
Executive Pay & 
Grading Scheme)

Resolved that:

Recommendations 2.1 to 2.3 as contained within the report 
be accepted.

681  Temporary Increased 
Enhancement of the 
Voluntary 
Redundancy/Voluntary 
Early Retirement 
Package (VR/VER) – 
Grade 12 and Below 
(Phase 1)

The Council were circulated with additional papers in 
relation to:

 Details of amendments to the report
 A Risk Assessment that had been omitted from the 

report
 An updated Financial and Staffing summery due to 

withdrawal of an application

A Member then moved recommendations 2.1 to 2.19 as 
contained within the report and this motion was seconded.

A Member then moved an amendment that 
recommendation 2.13 be removed and this motion was 
seconded.

The Monitoring Officer and the Chief Executive then 
clarified the recommendations for the Council.

A vote was then taken on recommendations 2.1 to 2.19 as 
contained within the report with the exception of 
recommendation 2.13.

Resolved that:

Recommendations 2.1 to 2.19 with the exception of 2.13 as 
contained within the report be accepted. 

The Monitoring Officer then clarified the proposed 
amendment.

The Member who had moved that recommendation 2.13 be 
removed then withdrew this motion and moved that 

Page 6



recommendation 2.13 be deferred not removed.

This proposal was then seconded.

A vote was then taken on the motion that recommendation 
2.13 be deferred and it was

Resolved that:

Recommendation 2.13 as contained within the report be 
deferred.

682  To deal with any other 
urgent business or 
correspondence

The Mayor advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

683  To receive 
communications from 
Her/His  Worship the 
Mayor

No Communications were received from His Worship the 
Mayor.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

FULL COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 16TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors   C Tovey (Chair)
                      H Barrett (Vice-Chair)

Councillors   J Amos, A Barry, C J Barry, B Carter, D Chaplin, 
M Colbran, C Davies, J Davies, L Davies, E Galsworthy, 
K Gibbs, D Hughes, D Isaac, S Jago, C T Jones, D Jones, 
H R Jones, G Lewis, L Mytton, K O'Neill, G Richards, D Roberts, 
T Rogers, D Sammon, T Skinner, W R Smith, J Thomas, 
G Thomas, I Thomas and S Thomas

Officers:
G W Chapman (Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal 
and Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), E Cooper 
(Deputy Chief Executive), S Jones (Head of Finance), 
M Thomas (Head of Corporate Services), L Curtis Jones (Chief 
Officer (Social Services)), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), 
C Evans (Chief Officer (Neighbourhood Services)), A Owen 
(Chief Officer (Regeneration and Public Protection)), A Mogford 
(Business Change Manager), F Donnelly (H R Manager), 
B Melhuish (Corporate Communications Officer), J Jones (Head 
of  Planning and Countryside), M Parry (Revenues Manager), L 
French (Revenue Officer), C Clarke (Housing Officer), S Lewis-
Abbott (Supporting People) and J Raine (Planning Policy & 
Implementation)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

726  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor P 
Brown.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4b



727  Declarations of Interest Councillor S Jago Declared her Interest in Item Six – 
Council Tax Discounts for Long Term Unoccupied 
Properties as she takes advantage of the empty property 
discount scheme.

Councillor H Barrett Declared his Interest in Item Six – 
Council Tax Discounts for Long Term Unoccupied 
Properties as he takes advantage of the empty property 
discount scheme.

728  Minutes of Previous 
Meeting(s)

The Council approves as accurate (subject to any 
amendments) the Minutes of the following Meetings:

728a  Full Council: 
19/12/2018

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Full Council Meeting held 19 December 
2018 be accepted as a correct record.

728b  Cabinet: 19/12/2018 Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting held 19 December 
2018 be accepted as a correct record.

728c  Licensing Committee: 
28/11/2018

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Licensing Committee held 28 November 
2018 be accepted as a correct record.

728d  Licensing Committee: 
28/11/2018

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Licensing Committee held 28 November 
2018 be accepted as a correct record.

728e  Licensing Committee: 
19/12/2018

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Licensing Committee held 19 December 
2018 be accepted as a correct record.

728f  Standards: 23/11/2018 Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Standards Committee held 23 
November 2018 be accepted as a correct record.

728g  Planning, Regulatory 
and Licensing: 
13/12/2018

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Planning, Regulatory and Licensing 
Committee held 13 December 2018 be accepted as a 
correct record.

728h  Scrutiny : Governance, 
Performance, Business 
Change and Corporate 
Services: 08/01/2019

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Governance, Performance, Business 
Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee held 8 
January 2019 be accepted as a correct record.

728i  Scrutiny : Social 
Services: 04/12/2018

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee held 

Page 10



4 December 2018 be accepted as a correct record.

728j  Democratic Services 
Committee: 
10/12/2018

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Democratic Services Committee held 10 
December 2018 be accepted as a correct record.

729  Scrutiny Committee 
Quorum

Resolved that:

The quorum for the Governance, Performance, Business 
Change and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee shall 
be at least four Councillors present.

730  Adoption Of Council 
Tax Reduction 
Scheme For The 
Financial Year 2019/20

Resolved that:

The decision to adopt a Council Tax Reduction Scheme to 
commence in April 2019 for the 2019/20 financial year be 
approved.

731  Council Tax Discounts 
for Long Term 
Unoccupied Properties

Councillor S Jago and Councillor H Barrett having Declared 
their Interest in this item left the Chamber for the 
consideration of this item.

Resolved that:

(a) The determination to apply a new level of 0% 
discount effective from 1 April 2019 for all Class C, 
Long Term Unoccupied properties, as defined in 
Section 12 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992 as amended, be approved (See Appendix B)

(b) The determination to apply no discount in the 
2019/20 financial year in respect of Long Term 
Unoccupied Properties as defined by Classes A 
and B of Section 12 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 as amended be approved (See 
Appendix B)

(c) The determination to apply no premium in the 
2020/21 financial year in respect of Long Term 
Unoccupied Properties, and Unoccupied and 
Furnished Dwellings be approved (This position to 
be reviewed in 2019 in relation to financial year 
2021/22)

732  The Replacement 
Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plan 
(2016 - 2031): Report 
of Consultation and 
Submission for 
Examination

Resolved that:

(a) The responses to the Replacement Deposit Local 
Development Plan representations as contained at 
Appendix 1 be approved

(b) The Schedule of Focused Changes at Appendix 2 
for Statutory Public Consultation purposes, the 
results of which will be considered by an 
independent Inspector in due course be approved

(c) The Submission of the Replacement Local 
Development Plan and accompanying 
documentation to Welsh Government and the 
Planning Inspectorate for Examination in 
accordance with the approved LDP Delivery 
Agreement and the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Development Plan) (Wales) Regulations 

Page 11



2005 (as amended) be approved
(d) Delegated powers be vested with the Head of 

Planning and Countryside in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Neighbourhood Services and 
Planning to negotiate issues, agreed amendments 
and respond to requests for further information as 
required by the Inspector during the examination 
process

(e) The Head of Planning and Countryside in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Neighbourhood Services and Planning be 
authorised to make any necessary typographical 
and minor changes to the Local Development Plan, 
Consultation Report, Proposed Focused Changes 
and associated submission documents

733  Amendments to 
Common Allocation 
Policy

Cerys Clarke referred to Paragraph 5.1 of the report – 
Financial Implications and advised that the cost was shared 
between the Local Authority and four Regional Social 
Landlords so the financial implication was £1072.60 and not 
£5363 as shown in the report. 

Resolved subject to the foregoing that:

The proposed changes to the Policy be approved.

734  Supporting People 
Local Commissioning 
Plan Annual Update 
2019-20

Resolved that:

The Local Commissioning Plan 2019/20 including the 
commissioning of new services be approved.

735  Petition Received by 
the Authority

Resolved that:

The report for Information be received.

736  Adoption Allowances 
and Inter-Agency 
Adoption Fees – 
Children’s Services

Resolved that:

The report for Information be received.

737  To deal with any other 
urgent business or 
correspondence

The Mayor congratulated Mark Thomas on his new 
appointment and thanked him for his service to the Council 
over the years.

Other Members also paid tribute to Mark Thomas for his 
service to the Authority and wished him well in his new role.

738  To receive 
communications from 
Her / His  Worship the 
Mayor

No Communications were received from His Worship the 
Mayor.

Page 12



MINUTES OF MEETING

CABINET MEETING
WEDNESDAY, 16TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors    K O'Neill (Chair)
                       L Mytton (Vice-Chair) 

Councillors   A Barry, K Gibbs, D Hughes and G Thomas

Officers
G W Chapman (Chief Executive), E Cooper (Deputy Chief 
Executive), F Donnelly (H R Manager), C Evans (Chief Officer 
(Neighbourhood Services)), S Jones (Head of Finance), 
A Mogford (Business Change Manager), A Owen (Chief Officer 
(Regeneration and Public Protection)), M Thomas (Head of 
Corporate Services), L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social 
Services)), B Melhuish (Corporate Communications Officer), 
S Walker (Chief Education Officer), G Morgan (Solicitor) and 
J Strong (Principal Officer Financial Management)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

715  Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members 
were present.

716  Declarations of Interest Councillor L Mytton Declared a Personal and Prejudicial 
Interest in Item Three – 21st Century Schools Programme, 
Construction of the new Ysgol y Graig Primary School.

717  21st Century Schools 
Programme, 
Construction of the 
new Ysgol y Graig 
Primary School

Councillor L Mytton having Declared her Interest in this Item 
left the Chamber for the consideration of this item.

Resolved that:

Stage 1 tender figure in the sum of £1,977,614.34 
submitted by Messrs Kier Construction Limited be 
accepted, and that Kier Construction Limited be awarded 
the Stage 1 advanced works package and invited to take 
part in the Stage 2 design and development process.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4c



718  Appropriation for 
Planning Purposes - 
Town Centre Bus 
Station and Land

Resolved that:

The site be appropriated for planning purposes and 
delegated authority to be provided to the Chief Officer, 
Neighbourhood Services to implement the appropriation 
process with a subsequent report back to Cabinet where 
necessary.

719  Local Transport Fund 
(LTF)

Resolved that:

(a) The progress that has been made by Officers to 
date be noted

(b) The award made by Welsh Government for the 
Local Transport Fund and Local Transport Network 
Fund be approved.

720  Annual Fostering 
Service Report

Resolved that:

(a) The contents of the Annual Report for 2017-18 be 
received and noted

(b) A further report be presented in future in respect of 
Fostering Services for 2018-19 which would be in 
an improved format in line with Care Inspectorate 
Wales (CIW) recommendations be agreed

721  Charging for 
Community Care 
Support Services

Resolved that:

(a) The maximum weekly charge be increased to the 
maximum that will be allowed by the Welsh 
Government of £90 per week and that the increase 
in charge will be effective from the 7 April 2019 be 
agreed

(b) The maximum charge be automatically increased to 
match the maximum charge allowed by the Welsh 
Government be agreed.  It is anticipated that this 
will mean the maximum charge increasing to £100 
per week in April 2020

722  ACTIVE TRAVEL 
(Wales) ACT 2013: 
Submission of 
Integrated Network 
Map to Welsh 
Government

Resolved that:

The report for Information be received.

723  Flying Start Foundation 
Phase Outcomes 
2017/18

Resolved that:

The report for Information be received.

Exempt

Resolved that:

The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 16 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) 
(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

Page 14



724  Direct Payment 
Support Service 
Tender

Resolved that:

The report for Information be received.

725  Any Other Business 
Deemed Urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

SCRUTINY : JOINT COMMITTEE 
MEETING

JOINT MEETING WITH AUDIT
WEDNESDAY, 9TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillor  G Lewis (Chair)

Councillors C J Barry, B Carter, D Chaplin, M Colbran, 
C Davies, J Davies, L Davies, C T Jones, D Jones, H R Jones, 
G Richards, D Sammon, W R Smith, S Thomas and I Thomas

Cooptees:
C Brown (Parent Governor - Primary), R Holdaway (Public 
Appointed), H Jackson (Voluntary Sector Co-opted Member), 
A Rees (Public Appointed), H Hopkins (Public Appointed), 
J McCarthy (Public Appointed) and J Beard (Public Appointed)

Other Councillors In Attendance:
A Barry (Cabinet Member), K Gibbs (Cabinet Member), 
D Hughes (Cabinet Member), L Mytton (Cabinet Member), 
K O'Neill (Cabinet Member) and G Thomas (Cabinet Member)

Officers:
G W Chapman (Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal 
and Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), E Cooper 
(Deputy Chief Executive), S Jones (Head of Finance), 
F Donnelly (H R Manager), M Thomas (Head of Corporate 
Services), C Evans (Chief Officer (Neighbourhood Services)), 
L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social Services)), A Mogford 
(Business Change Manager), A Owen (Chief Officer 
(Regeneration and Public Protection)), P H Davies (Purchasing 
Manager), C Hole (Head of Community Wellbeing), G Evans 
(Audit Manager) and C Dinham (Communications, Consultation 
and Engagement Manager)

Page 17

Agenda Item 4d



Outside Bodies:
H Goddard and C Smith (Wales Audit Office)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

669  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor T 
Skinner, Councillor J Amos, Councillor P Brown, Councillor 
S Jago and R Lazelle and K Phelan Co-opted Members.

670  Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations)

No Declarations of Interest were made.

Exempt

Resolved that:

The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 13 and 14 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 
100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

671  Temporary Increased 
Enhancement of the 
Voluntary Redundancy 
/ Voluntary Early 
Retirement (VR/VER) 
Package

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Temporary 
Increased Enhancement of the Voluntary Redundancy / 
Voluntary Early Retirement (VR/VER) Package’ report.

The Committee were also circulated with additional papers 
in relation to:

 Details of amendments to the report
 A Risk Assessment that had been omitted from the 

report
 An updated Financial and Staffing summary due to 

withdrawal of an application

The Committee then received a Presentation giving details 
of:

 Financial Situation – Updated MTFP 2018/19 to 
2021/22

 Major Financial Pressures for 2019/20
 VER/VR Timeline / Enhancement Offer / 

Considerations
 H R Process
 Risk Assessment – Gateway Process
 Communications Strategy
 Next Steps

Questions were then raised by the Committee on the report 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers and the 
Cabinet Members.

Page 18



Resolved that:

The report be noted. 

672  Any Other Business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

AUDIT MEETING
JOINT MEETING WITH JOINT 

SCRUTINY
WEDNESDAY, 9TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors      C T Jones, D Roberts, J Davies, G Lewis, 
D Sammon, C Tovey and J Thomas

Lay Member:
R Williams (Lay Member)

Other Councillors in Attendance:
A Barry (Cabinet Member), K Gibbs (Cabinet Member), 
D Hughes (Cabinet Member), L Mytton (Cabinet Member), 
K O'Neill (Cabinet Member) and G Thomas (Cabinet Member)

Officers:
G W Chapman (Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal and 
Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), E Cooper (Deputy 
Chief Executive), S Jones (Head of Finance), F Donnelly (H R 
Manager), A Mogford (Business Change Manager), M Thomas 
(Head of Corporate Services), G Evans (Audit Manager), 
P H Davies (Purchasing Manager), C Dinham (Communications, 
Consultation and Engagement Manager), C Evans (Chief Officer 
(Neighbourhood Services)), C Hole (Head of Community 
Wellbeing), L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social Services)) and 
A Owen (Chief Officer (Regeneration and Public Protection))

Outside Bodies: 
H Goddard and C Smith (Wales Audit Office)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

Page 21

Agenda Item 4e



673  Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor J 
Amos.

674  Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made.

Exempt
Resolved that:

The public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 13 and 14 under Part 4 of Schedule 12A Section 
100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

675  Temporary Increased 
Enhancement of the 
Voluntary Redundancy 
/ Voluntary Early 
Retirement (VR/VER) 
Package

The Chair of the Joint Committee referred the Committee to 
the ‘Temporary Increased Enhancement of the Voluntary 
Redundancy / Voluntary Early Retirement (VR/VER) 
Package’ report.

The Committee were also circulated with additional papers 
in relation to:

 Details of amendments to the report
 A Risk Assessment that had been omitted from the 

report
 An updated Financial and Staffing summary due to 

withdrawal of an application

The Committee then received a Presentation giving details 
of:

 Financial Situation – Updated MTFP 2018/19 to 
2021/22

 Major Financial Pressures for 2019/20
 VER/VR Timeline / Enhancement Offer / 

Considerations
 H R Process
 Risk Assessment – Gateway Process
 Communications Strategy
 Next Steps

Questions were then raised by the Committee on the report 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers and the 
Cabinet Members.

Resolved that:

The report be noted.

676  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 22



MINUTES OF MEETING

SCRUTINY : JOINT 
COMMITTEE MEETING

JOINT MEETING WITH AUDIT
WEDNESDAY, 23RD JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: 

Councillors T Skinner, G Lewis, J Amos, C J Barry, B Carter, 
D Chaplin, M Colbran, J Davies, S Jago, C T Jones, D Jones, 
H R Jones, G Richards, T Rogers, D Sammon, W R Smith, 
S Thomas and I Thomas

Cooptees:
R Holdaway (Public Appointed) and J Beard (Public Appointed)

Other Councillors In Attendance:
K O'Neill (Cabinet Member), D Hughes (Cabinet Member) and 
G Thomas (Cabinet Member)

Officers:
G W Chapman (Chief Executive), C Kennedy (Head of Legal 
and Governance Services - Monitoring Officer), E Cooper 
(Deputy Chief Executive), S Jones (Head of Finance), C Evans 
(Chief Officer (Neighbourhood Services)), L Curtis Jones (Chief 
Officer (Social Services)), A Mogford (Business Change 
Manager), A Owen (Chief Officer (Regeneration and Public 
Protection)), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), C Dinham 
(Communications, Consultation and Engagement Manager), 
F Donnelly (H R Manager), P Lewis (Trading Standards and 
Licensing Manager) and G Evans (Audit Manager)

Outside Bodies:
H Goddard (Wales Audit Office)
 
M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

Page 23

Agenda Item 4f



ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

758  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor P 
Brown, Councillor C Davies, Councillor L Davies and H 
Jackson, R Lazell, K Sutton, M Ellis, H Hopkins, J 
McCarthy, K Phelan, C Payne, H Powell, T Butler, E 
Wilkins-Campbell, and E Davies Co-opted Members.

759  Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations)

Mr R Holdaway Co-opted Member Declared his Interest in 
Item Three – Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 
2022/23 – Update January 2019 – Citizen’s Advice Bureau 
as he is a Director. 

760  Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2019/20 
to 2022/23 - Update 
January 2019

Steve Jones referred the Committee to the ‘Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 – Update January 2019’ 
report and also made a Presentation in relation to:

 Revised Budget Deficits 2019/20 to 2022/23
 Corporate Additional Demands
 Corporate Budget Reductions
 Further Revised Budget Deficits
 Local Government Revenue Settlement
 Welsh Local Government Revenue Settlement 

2019 -2020
 Schools Budget Reductions
 Proposals to Address Budget Deficit 2019/20

The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers:

 Increase in cost of school meals
 Paragraph 3.1 – What is the projected deficit – 

Could the figure be included in the report
 What are the current reserves
 What is the cost of the Additional Learning Needs 

Bill
 Clarification sought in relation to Budget and 

general reserves
 Timing of grants from the Welsh Government
 Further details requested in relation to Phase 2 – 

VR/VER
 Teachers Pensions
 Position next year in relation to Children Looked 

After – Demands
 Cost of a Residential Placement per annum
 Explanation requested in relation to Weekly 

Placements
 Level of Placements – Reasons for the increase – 

Is this UK wide
 Clarification sought on Supported Placements 

(Individual Care Packages)
 Clarification sought in relation to Financing of a 

permanent Energy Officer

A Member then enquired why there was no Member of the 
Cabinet present at the Meeting to respond to questions 

Page 24



raised.

Another Member then advised that the Cabinet Members 
were currently in another Meeting and would be attending 
shortly.

A Member then moved the motion that ‘this Committee was 
disappointed that there was no Cabinet Member present at 
the Meeting’ and this motion was seconded.

Councillor K O’Neill, Councillor D Hughes and Councillor G 
Thomas then entered the Meeting at 3.10pm.

A vote was then taken on the Motion and it was

Resolved that:

To note the disappointment of the Committee that there was 
no Cabinet Member present at the Meeting.

Further Resolved that:

The report be noted.

761  Any Other Business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

Councillor K O’Neill addressed the Committee regarding the 
attendance of the Cabinet Members at the Meeting.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

AUDIT MEETING
JOINT MEETING WITH JOINT 

SCRUTINY
WEDNESDAY, 23RD JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors      C T Jones (Chair)
                        
Councillors:      D Roberts, J Amos, J Davies, G Lewis, 
D Sammon, C Tovey and J Thomas

Lay Member:
R Williams (Lay Member)

Other Councillors in Attendance:
K O'Neill (Cabinet Member), D Hughes (Cabinet Member) and 
G Thomas (Cabinet Member)

Officers:
G W Chapman (Chief Executive), E Cooper (Deputy Chief 
Executive), S Jones (Head of Finance), C Evans (Chief Officer 
(Neighbourhood Services)), L Curtis Jones (Chief Officer (Social 
Services)), C Kennedy (Head of Legal and Governance Services 
- Monitoring Officer), A Owen (Chief Officer (Regeneration and 
Public Protection)), S Walker (Chief Education Officer), 
F Donnelly (H R Manager), C Dinham (Communications, 
Consultation and Engagement Manager), P Lewis (Trading 
Standards and Licensing Manager) and G Evans (Audit 
Manager)

Outside Bodies: 
H Goddard (Wales Audit Office)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

Page 27

Agenda Item 4g



ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

762  Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all Members of 
the Audit Committee were present.

763  Declarations of Interest Mr R Holdaway Co-opted Member on the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Declared his Interest in Item Three – Medium 
Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 – Update January 
2019 – Citizen’s Advice Bureau as he is a Director.

764  Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2019/20 
to 2022/23 - Update 
January 2019

Steve Jones referred the Committee to the ‘Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 – Update January 2019’ 
report and also made a Presentation in relation to:

 Revised Budget Deficits 2019/20 to 2022/23
 Corporate Additional Demands
 Corporate Budget Reductions
 Further Revised Budget Deficits
 Local Government Revenue Settlement
 Welsh Local Government Revenue Settlement 

2019 -2020
 Schools Budget Reductions
 Proposals to Address Budget Deficit 2019/20

The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers:

 Increase in cost of school meals
 Paragraph 3.1 – What is the projected deficit – 

Could the figure be included in the report
 What are the current reserves
 What is the cost of the Additional Learning Needs 

Bill
 Clarification sought in relation to Budget and 

general reserves
 Timing of grants from the Welsh Government
 Further details requested in relation to Phase 2 – 

VR/VER
 Teachers Pensions
 Position next year in relation to Children Looked 

After – Demands
 Cost of a Residential Placement per annum
 Explanation requested in relation to Weekly 

Placements
 Level of Placements – Reasons for the increase – 

Is this UK wide
 Clarification sought on Supported Placements 

(Individual Care Packages)
 Clarification sought in relation to Financing of a 

permanent Energy Officer

A Member then enquired why there was no Member of the 
Cabinet present at the Meeting to respond to questions 
raised.

Another Member then advised that the Cabinet Members 
were currently in another Meeting and would be attending 

Page 28



shortly.

A Member then moved the motion that ‘this Committee was 
disappointed that there was no Cabinet Member present at 
the Meeting’ and this motion was seconded.

Councillor K O’Neill, Councillor D Hughes and Councillor G 
Thomas then entered the Meeting at 3.10pm.

A vote was then taken on the Motion and it was

Resolved that:

To note the disappointment of the Committee that there was 
no Cabinet Member present at the Meeting.

Further Resolved that:

The report be noted.

765  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

Councillor K O’Neill addressed the Committee regarding the 
attendance of the Cabinet Members at the Meeting.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

PLANNING, REGULATORY 
AND LICENSING MEETING

THURSDAY, 10TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors    H Barrett (Chair)
                       C Tovey (Vice-Chair)

Councillors D Chaplin, M Colbran, E Galsworthy, K Gibbs, 
C T Jones, G Lewis and S Thomas

Officers:
S Jones (Senior Solicitor), A Hughes (Licensing Officer), J Baber 
(Licensing Officer) and M Phillips (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

695  Apologies for absence Apologies for absence received from the following 
committee members: Councillor J Amos and Councillor J 
Thomas.

696  Declarations of Interest Councillor Clive Tovey declared a personal and prejudicial 
interest in Item 3 as the applicant is known to him and he 
uses the applicant’s services.

Councillor Howard Barrett declared a personal and 
prejudicial interest in Item 3 as the applicant is known to 
him and he uses the applicant’s services.

697  Hackney Carriage 
Vehicle Licence

As the Chair and Deputy both declared an interest in this 
item the committee elected Councillor Clive Jones as Chair.

Councillor C Tovey and Councillor H Barrett left the Council 
Chamber after declaring their personal and prejudicial 
interest in this item.

Page 31

Agenda Item 4h



Councillor Clive Jones took the Chair and the Legal Officer 
updated the committee on what was discussed in the 
Licensing Committee that took place prior to the start of 
Planning, Regulatory and Licensing Committee.

Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence (GW)

After questions and discussion by the committee it was 
Resolved that:

The vehicle licence renewal period be extended.

698  Any Other Business 
Deemed Urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent and closed the meeting.

Page 32



MINUTES OF MEETING

PLANNING, REGULATORY 
AND LICENSING MEETING

WEDNESDAY, 6TH FEBRUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors    H Barrett (Chair)
                       C Tovey (Vice-Chair)

Councillors J Amos, D Chaplin, M Colbran, E Galsworthy, 
K Gibbs, C T Jones, G Lewis, J Thomas and S Thomas

Officers:
J Jones (Head of  Planning and Countryside), G Morgan 
(Solicitor), H Roberts (Group Leader Development Control) and 
D Cross (Principal Planning Officer) and M Phillips (Democratic 
Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

766  Apologies for absence No apologies for absence were received as all members 
were present.

767  Declarations of Interest Councillor Howard Barrett declared a personal and 
prejudicial interest in Item 4 as the Chair of Cancer Aid is a 
personal friend.
    

768  P/18/0054  -  Land 
Adjacent to 17 
Beechwood Drive, 
Heolgerrig, Merthyr 
Tydfil

Proposed dwelling with minor works on the junction of 
Heolgerrig Road

The Planning Officer introduced the item and led the 
committee through the report and presentation.

The following questions were raised by the committee and 
were responded to by the Planning Officer.

Page 33

Agenda Item 4i



 This application has been refused on three previous 
occasions but the reason that it is recommended for 
approval this time is due to the improvement to the 
vision splay; however, the report states that the 
vision splay is still an issue due to a sign and a 
telegraph pole. Also the hedge would have to be 
maintained over time to continue to provide 
improved visibility

 When this application was previously turned down 
by the Planning Inspectorate there was mention of 
a traffic and pedestrian survey, why has there been 
no pedestrian survey carried out and why was the 
Highways Officer not made aware of the proposed 
development of a Children’s play area above the 
proposed site which would potentially increase 
pedestrian traffic

 In relation to Highway Safety the report states that 
traffic volume passing the access is light with a total 
of 13 two way vehicle movements being recorded 
during the morning peak hour (08.00 – 09.00) and 
27 movements during the afternoon / evening peak 
period (17.00 – 18.00) Can you confirm how long 
they were on site to record these figures and do 
you feel the time spent on site was adequate to 
record the vehicular movements

 Can the Planning Officer confirm if any objections 
have been received from the owner of The Gables 
since the publication of the report and is it correct 
that if the ownership of The Gables changes and 
they make an objection this application cannot go 
ahead

After consideration by the committee, it was Resolved that:

In accordance with the recommendation of the Head of 
Town Planning and Countryside, the application be 
approved subject to the conditions outlined in the report.

769  P/18/0330  -  Land at 
East Street and Upper 
Union Street, Dowlais, 
Merthyr Tydfil

Construction of 10 dwellings with associated retaining walls, 
parking, access and new footpath

Councillor Howard Barrett left the Council Chamber as he 
had declared a personal and prejudicial interest in this item 
and Councillor Clive Tovey took the Chair.

The Planning Officer introduced the item and led the 
committee through the report and presentation.

Councillor Julian Amos raised concerns in relation to this 
application due to the size of the petition submitted and a 
number of objections in relation to highway access and 
moved that a site visit be called in relation to this 
application.

Page 34



Resolved that:  

A Fact Finding Visit be convened and that the appropriate 
officers from Planning and Highways Department be invited 
to attend.
 

770  P/18/0350  -  Land off 
Aneurin Crescent, 
Twynyrodyn, Merthyr 
Tydfil

Construct 5, 2 bedroom bungalows

Councillor Howard Barrett returned to the meeting and took 
the Chair.

The Planning Officer introduced the item and led the 
committee through the power point presentation in relation 
to the application.

Councillor John Thomas moved that a site visit be called in 
relation to this application.

Resolved that: 

A Fact Finding Visit be convened and that the appropriate 
officers from Planning and Highways Department be invited 
to attend.

771  P/18/0392  -  Land 
North of Pant Industrial 
Estate, Bryniau Road, 
Pant, Merthyr Tydfil

Residential Development

The Planning Officer introduced the item and led the 
committee through the report and presentation.

After consideration by the committee, it was Resolved that:

In accordance with the recommendation of the Head of 
Town Planning and Countryside, the application be 
approved subject to the conditions outlined in the report.

772  Appeal Decision  -  
P/18/0192

Resolved that:

Appeal Decision P/18/0192 be received.

773  Appeal Decision  -  
P/18/0195

Resolved that:

Appeal Decision P/18/0195 be received.

774  Delegated Report Resolved that:

Delegated report be received.

775  Any Other Business 
Deemed Urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent and closed the meeting.

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND 
LAESCYP MEETING
MONDAY, 26TH NOVEMBER, 2018

PRESENT: Councillors  H R Jones (Chair)
                       L Davies (Vice-Chair)

Councillors D Chaplin, C Davies and S Jago

Cooptees:
R Lazell (Parent Governor-Secondary/Special), K Phelan 
(Diocesan Representative) and A Rees (Public)

Other Councillors in Attendance:
L Mytton (Cabinet Member)

Officers:
S Walker (Chief Education Officer), A Lewis (Head of School 
Planning Performance and Resource), A McCafferty 
(Performance and Scrutiny Officer) and S Jones (Head of 
Finance)

K Reddy (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

548  Apologies for absence The Chair advised that Councillor Chris Davies had decided 
to step down as Vice Chair of this Committee and this 
position has now been taken by Councillor Lee Davies.   On 
behalf of the Committee, the Chair wished to thank 
Councillor Chris Davies for the work he has done as Vice 
Chair.  

Page 37

Agenda Item 4j



The Chair also advised Members that there is a vacancy on 
this Committee for a Co-opted Member and that this 
vacancy will be filled during the course of the next month.  

Councillor Chris Davies advised members that Ryan 
Crowley will no longer be the Youth Forum Representative 
on this Committee due to his busy timetable at University, 
but that there is currently a review of young people 
engagement on Scrutiny Committees being carried out.   

Apologies for absence received from Councillor Brent 
Carter, Claire Brown and Anne Roberts (Co-optees).

549  Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations)

Councillor Chris Davies declared an interest in Item 4 
(Nursery Sufficiency and 30 hours Childcare Offer) as he is 
the registered person for Plant Bach Pre School but has 
dispensation to speak and vote on this matter.  

550  Inspection Area 3  -  
Leadership and 
Management

Sue Walker led the Committee through the report on 
Inspection Area 3  -  Leadership and Management.

Sue Walker advised the Committee that the original 
judgement for Inspection Area 3 was ‘good’ because there 
were ‘strong features with minor aspects that may require 
improvement’.   However following the Learning awayday, 
reflecting on where we were, the judgement will change 
from ‘Good’ to ‘Adequate’ and needs improvement.  

The following questions were raised by the Committee and 
were responded to in detail by the officers:

 Clarification on the current absence of a robust 
corporate self-evaluation system which is 
acknowledged as a significant weakness. 

 Requirement to share knowledge across 
departments so that staff have the opportunity to 
keep up to date with regard to their areas of 
responsibility.  

 The possibility of further opportunities for immediate 
access to training for all staff in relation to 
safeguarding.  

 Clarification on the Child Safeguarding Policy. 

 In relation to the use of resources, how will the 
Authority demonstrate sustained impact from the 
allocation of resources and spending decisions on 
supporting positive outcomes for all learners.  

 The role of the Central South Consortium.

 Local Government Educational Services 
Framework.

 Future focus of this Committee. 

Page 38



 Progress on the outcome of the Capita One 
Review. 

RESOLVED that:

The contents of the report be noted.  

551  Nursery Sufficiency 
and 30 Hrs Childcare 
Offer

Anthony Lewis gave members an update on the progress 
made by the Local Authority in relation to Nursery 
Sufficiency and 30 hours Childcare Offer and advised that 
following the conclusion of the Sufficiency Review, a report 
will be taken to Council recommending a way forward for 
nursery education across the County Borough and advising 
of the likely impact on the 30 hours childcare offer.   

The following questions were raised by the Committee and 
were responded to in detail by Officers:

 Why is the Local Authority not yet formally 
determined a sufficient provision of nursery 
education for its area? 

 Why is the Authority commissioning work to 
undertake an assessment.  Can this be carried out 
in house?  

 Clarification on the significant number of children 
from Flying Start settings experiencing delays of 
one or two terms before accessing FPN2 in 
September.  

 Short supply of places in Welsh Medium (WM) 
Nursery Education. 

 Clarification on  the remaining 9% or 97 pupils that 
were delayed entry to nursery education in January 
or April 2018 until September 2018.

 Childcare Offer  -  how many potential providers 
have been identified in Merthyr Tydfil and how 
many have signed up to the 30 hours offer to date?

Alan Rees (Co-optee) left the meeting at 4.55 pm.

Councillor Chris Davies left the meeting at 5.15 pm

RESOLVED that:

The contents of the report be noted. 

552  Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme

The Committee considered and agreed the Work 
Programme. 

553  Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions

The Chair advised that there were no referrals, feedback or 
follow up actions to discuss. 

Page 39



554  Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting

The Chair and the Committee reflected in detail on the 
items that had been considered at the meeting. 

555  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair referred to the additional report on the ISB 
Funding Reductions for 2019/2020 which was handed out 
to members at the pre-meeting.  Due to the short 
timescales, it was agreed by members that in order to give 
this document due consideration, a Special Learning and 
LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee be convened for Monday, 
17th December 2018 at 2.00 pm.  

Page 40



MINUTES OF MEETING

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND 
LAESCYP MEETING
MONDAY, 17TH DECEMBER, 2018

PRESENT: Councillors  H R Jones (Chair)
                       L Davies (Vice-Chair)

Councillors B Carter, D Chaplin and S Jago

Cooptees:
C Brown (Parent Governor-Primary), R Lazell (Parent Governor-
Secondary/Special), K Phelan (Diocesan Representative) and 
A Rees (Public)

Other Councillors in Attendance:
L Mytton (Cabinet Member)

Officers:
S Walker (Chief Education Officer), S Jones (Head of Finance), 
A Lewis (Head of School Planning Performance and Resource) 
and A McCafferty (Performance and Scrutiny Officer)

K Reddy (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

620  Apologies for absence Apologies for absence received from Councillor Chris 
Davies, Anne Roberts (Co-optee), Michelle Symonds (Co-
optee) and Euan Wilkins-Campbell (Youth Forum 
Representative).

621  Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations)

Rosemary Lazell (Co-optee) declared an interest in relation 
to Item 3 (ISB Funding Reductions 2019-2020) as she sits 
on Afon Taf’s Budget Forum.

Page 41

Agenda Item 4k



622  ISB Funding 
Reductions 2019-20

Anthony Lewis led the Committee in detail through the ISB 
Funding Reduction Report for 2019-20, in relation to:

 Council’s approval of the School Forums’ 
recommendations subject to consultation with 
Schools, consideration by the Scrutiny Committee 
and a further report to Cabinet/Council. 

 Additional information regarding the School funding 
reductions.

 Learning Department’s additional demands.

 Removal of the remaining funding from the Schools’  
formula allocation for ‘addressing 
underachievement’. 

 School forum Proposals. 

 Risk Assessments for Schools’ draft proposals for 
2019/20.

 Increase of School meal prices.   

The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by the officers:

 Could ‘Red’ Schools be taken out of these 
reduction proposals?  

 Would Education work with each school individually 
on the proposed reductions?

 Process of liaising with the Schools’ forums.

 What options were given for consideration to the 
Schools’ forums?

 Risk Assessments in relation to these reductions.  

 How have the School forums considered savings in 
the past? 

 Could these savings affect the long term 
performance of the Schools throughout the County 
Borough?

 Clarification on the Learning Department’s budgets 
and required growth. 

 Clarification on the individual School Budget for 
Teachers’ Pension and the possible outcome of 
funding.

 Why were there no School meal increases for 
2016/17 and 2017/18.

 Funding of free School meals. 

Page 42



 Current number of free School meals. 

 Data on the increase of free School meals.

 Total amount of debt in relation to School meals, 
how are Schools dealing with these outstanding 
amounts and are families being supported?

 
 Percentage of children taking up free School meals. 

 Eligibility of free School meals. 

 The effect of in-work poverty throughout the County 
Borough in terms of the recommended increase of 
Schools meals.  

The Chair addressed the Committee in detail regarding the 
analysis that he had carried out in relation to the increase in 
free School meals.  Following discussion it was 
RESOLVED that:

 The contents of the report be noted. 

 Anthony Lewis provide members with data on the 
increase of free School meals as soon as possible.  

 This Scrutiny Committee offers no objection to 
School meal prices increasing in Primary and 
Secondary Schools by the proposed 15p in April 
2019.  However, this Scrutiny Committee strongly 
objects to yet a further proposed additional price 
increase of 15p in September 2019, which would 
represent a 3rd increase in 10 months.  

 Councillor Lisa Mytton, Cabinet Member for 
Learning and LAESCYP, takes these views to the 
Cabinet meeting when considering this item.  

623  Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting

The Chair and the Committee reflected in detail on the 
items that had been considered at the meeting. 

624  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND 
LAESCYP MEETING

MONDAY, 14TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors  H R Jones (Chair)
                       L Davies (Vice-Chair)

Councillors B Carter, D Chaplin and C Davies

Cooptees:
C Brown (Parent Governor-Primary), K Jones (Public), K Phelan 
(Diocesan Representative), A Rees (Public), A Roberts 
(Voluntary Sector) and K Sutton (Youth Forum Representative)

Other Councillors in Attendance:
L Mytton (Cabinet Member)

Officers:
S Walker (Chief Education Officer), A McCafferty (Performance 
and Scrutiny Officer), J Colsey (Head of School Improvement) 
and C Hole (Head of Community Wellbeing)

Outside Bodies:
J Edwards (ESTYN Link Inspector)
A Williams (Central South Consortium)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

699  Apologies for absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor S 
Jago and R Lazell and M Symonds Co-opted Members.

Page 45

Agenda Item 4l



Welcome

The Chair welcomed Karl Jones and Kaitlin Sutton Co-opted Members to their first Committee 
Meeting.

700  Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations)

No Declarations of Interest were made.

701  Performance Report  -  
Executive Summary

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Performance 
Report – Executive Summary – Corporate Plan: Standards 
of Attainment 2018’ report.

Sue Walker then gave an overview and an update on 
progress and advised of the following amendments to the 
report:

 Paragraph 4.7 – Should read ‘In 2017 attendance is 
unsatisfactory’.

 Appendix G - Paragraph 6.4 – Should read 
‘Council’ not ‘Party’.

The Committee then raised the following questions on the 
report and were responded to in detail by the Officers and 
Councillor L Mytton Cabinet Portfolio Member:

 Paragraph 6.6 – NEET’s – Further information 
requested

 Paragraph 6.7 – Youth Services – Further 
information requested

 How can links between Flying Start Providers and 
Schools be strengthened

 What is being done in relation to non Flying Start 
children

 The focus on education attainment
 Paragraph 6.2.7 – Key Stage 4 – Further 

information requested in relation to the ranking for 
the Authority

 Could more money being put into Education help 
with improvements

 Is there a visit scheduled from ESTYN
 Paragraph 3.4 – Further information requested in 

relation to CAPITA
 Is there sufficient staff to ensure CAPITA is fully 

utilised
 When was the last Secondary School Inspection 

undertaken by ESTYN
 Paragraph 6.1.5 – How does the Authority intend to 

improve outcomes – Will there be focus on the 
schools that need the help – Role of Governing 
Bodies

 Concerns expressed in relation to reduction in the 
schools budget  

 Youth Services – Are there good links with all high 
schools and the College

 Vulnerable Learner Groups
 Paragraph 6.3 - Definition requested of the EAL 

Page 46



Category – (Sue Walker advised that the 
Committee would be circulated with a definition 
sheet for their information)

 Explanation requested in relation to – ‘All other EAL 
pupils perform better then non EAL pupils’

 Paragraph 6.4 – Explanation requested in relation 
to – ‘Pupils from ethnic groups other than white 
British make up 8.8% of the cohort, 3.2% of which 
are Polish.  On the whole pupils from an ethnic 
minority achieve the same outcomes as pupils from 
a white British background; however the 
performance of Polish pupils is slightly better with 
88.9% of Polish pupils achieving the CSI compared 
with 88.1% of white British pupils’ – Why is the 
performance better - CAPITA Data

 Appendix 1 - Paragraph 6.4.7 – Children Looked 
After – Explanation requested in relation to – ‘The 
performance of Children Looked After is variable 
due to the small number of pupils within the cohort’ 
– What are Schools and the Consortium doing to 
provide for pupils so that pupils can achieve the 
best

 Is the focus right – are monies being used to the 
best effect

 What more is the Department going to be doing for 
Children Looked After

 Appendix B - Paragraph 5.1 – Explanation 
requested – What is being done to look at the 
methods of assessment

 Flying Start Children with Additional Learning 
Needs – Where are the areas of added value

 Increase in Exclusions – What is being done about 
this – What was the reasons for the Exclusions

The Chair then referred the Committee to Appendix 2, the 
Task and Finish Scrutiny Report on ‘Review of Attendance 
and Attainment in Primary and Secondary Schools’ report 
and emphasised the importance of Attendance.

The Chair also referred to information that had been 
displayed for the Committee and referred in detail to the 
Table on ‘Attendance for Primary and Secondary School 
Attendance for the periods 2013/14, 2014/15, 2015/16, 
2016/17 and 2017/18’.

The Chair then suggested that he meet with the Officers to 
further consider the information in the Table and that this 
matter be agendered for the next Committee Meeting.

The Committee then agreed that the Chair meet with the 
Officers in relation to Attendance and that Attendance be on 
the agenda of the next Committee Meeting.

Resolved that:

The judgements and evaluations be noted.

Kaitlin Sutton and Alan Rees left the Meeting at 5.25 pm. 

Page 47



702  Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
up Actions

The Chair advised that there was no update on this item.

703  Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting

The Chair and the Committee reflected in detail on the 
matters that had been discussed at the Meeting.

704  Work Programme The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Work Programme 
2018/19’ report.

The Committee considered the items for the next 
Committee Meeting and in relation to the ‘Headteacher 
Presentation’, debate ensued on the topic to be discussed 
at the Meeting by the Headteacher and it was agreed that 
suggested topics be forwarded to the Scrutiny Officer and 
that the suggestions then be shared with the Committee.

A Committee Member also referred to the dates that were 
to be confirmed in relation to invites /visits to Heads and 
Chairs of Governance and enquired if it would be possible 
to arrange a visit.

It had also been agreed earlier in the Meeting that 
Attendance be agendered for the next Committee Meeting

Clare Brown left the Meeting at 5.55 pm.

Councillor D Chaplin left the Meeting at 5.59 pm. 

705  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 48



MINUTES OF MEETING

SCRUTINY : REGENERATION 
AND PUBLIC PROTECTION 

MEETING
TUESDAY, 15TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors   J Amos (Chair)
                     C J Barry (Vice-Chair)

Councillors   M Colbran and G Lewis
Councillor L Davies (Substitute Member)

Cooptees:
H Hopkins (Public), M Ellis (Youth Forum Representative) and 
H Powell (Public)

Officers:
S Jones (Head of Finance), A Owen (Chief Officer 
(Regeneration and Public Protection)), C Long (Economic 
Development & Strategic Tourism Manager), R Prosser (Town 
Centre Manager), P Lewis (Trading Standards and Licensing 
Manager), R Evans (Community Safety Officer) and M Purnell 
(Performance and Scrutiny Officer)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

706  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor P 
Brown and H Jackson Co-opted Member.

Councillor L Davies was present as a substitute Member. 

707  Declarations of Interest No Declarations of Interest were made.

Page 49

Agenda Item 4m



(including whipping 
declarations)

708  Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2019-20 
to 2022-23 - Additional 
Demands

The Chair welcomed Steve Jones and Paul Lewis to the 
Meeting.

Steve Jones then led the Committee through the ‘Medium 
Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 – Additional 
Demands’ report.

The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers:

 Appendix 1 – Is this the only uplift
 What are the new contract routes – Where is there 

demand

Resolved that:

The content of the report be noted.

709  Continued 
development of the 
Town Centre - Evening 
Economy

The Chair welcomed Alyn Owen, Chris Long and Rhian 
Prosser to the Meeting.

Rhian Prosser then led the Committee through the 
‘Continued Development of the Town Centre – Evening 
Economy’ report.

The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to in detail by the Officers:

 Paragraph 5.2 – Purple Flag – Is the Authority 
applying this year

 Paragraphs 5.3 and 6.1 – Merthyr After Dark 
Strategy – Is there reliance on other Businesses to 
provide activities

 Restaurant provision – What is the timeframe
 Perception of Visitors to the County Borough
 Partnership working to provide skills training 
 Paragraph 5.5 – Explanation required in relation to 

‘Flexibility of the Licensing Act 2003 and the 
Gambling Act 2005’

 Update requested on the new and existing Bus 
Station

 Paragraph 4.3 – Update requested on 
Homelessness

Resolved that:

The content of the report be noted.

Councillor C Barry left the Meeting at 3.15 pm.

710  Substance Misuse - 
Development of the 
Drug Litter App

The Chair welcomed Ryan Evans to the Meeting.

Ryan Evans then made the following Presentation on Safer 
Communities Wales Merthyr Tydfil Community Safety 
Partnership Pilot to the Committee:

Page 50



 What is it – Safe Communities Wales is a mobile 
phone app and web based tool for recording drug 
litter

 The issues
 How big is the problem
 Why is the App required

The Committee then received a demonstration of the App 
on a mobile phone 

The User Guide also gave details of:

 The Risk / Challenge
 What various drug paraphernalia looks like
 New psychoactive substances (NPS)
 Heroin cookers
 Used needles
 Swabs / equipment

The following questions were then raised by the Committee 
and were responded to by the Officers:

 How many people have access to the App
 Explanation requested in relation to the red and 

greed circles on the App
 Who goes out and cleans up
 Returns Policy
 Where can a Sharps Box be sourced
 Can volunteers use this
 Where was this App developed
 How does this differ from other Apps
 Volume of Nitrous Oxide canisters collected
 How can duplication of reporting be avoided
 If the Pilot is successful can income be generated 

from the App
 Cost associated with the App

The Chair then Ryan Evans and Paul Lewis for the 
demonstration.

711  Work Programme 
2018/19

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Work Programme’ 
report and it was agreed by the Committee.

712  Scrutiny Referrals, 
Feedback and Follow 
Up Actions

The Chair advised that there was no update on this item.

713  Reflection and 
Evaluation of Meeting

The Chair and the Committee discussed in detail the issues 
that had been considered at the Meeting.

714  Any Other Business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Chair advised that there was no business deemed 
urgent.

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

FULL COUNCIL REPORT

To:  Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen

Post Entry Training Policy and Sponsorship Policy

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report details the changes made to the Post Entry Training Scheme for 
Corporate staff (Appendix 1), the Post Entry Training Scheme for Social Services 
staff (Appendix 2) and the details of the Sponsorship Policy for staff undertaking the 
Social Services degree.

1.2 The post entry training schemes apply to all permanent employees of the Council, 
except for school based staff in LMS arrangements and staff undertaking the Social 
Care Degree have their own specific policy which has also been amended to provide 
consistency with the Corporate policy.

1.3 The types of courses which this scheme covers are courses which require either a 
financial or time commitment from the Authority on an on-going basis.  It does not 
include one off training courses which are booked on an ad hoc basis.

1.4 The new Social Services Sponsorship Policy (Appendix 3) has been designed to 
ensure that the resources committed by Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council to its 
students during the course of their studies are maximised within the organisation, to 
the benefit of MTCBC and the community it serves, whilst at the same time positively 
supporting staff retention initiatives by ensuring our students have a positive first 
experience in Social Work.

Date Written 6th February 2019
Report Author Hannah Brown
Service Area Chief Executive
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 20th February 2019

Page 53

Agenda Item 5



2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that

2.1 The amendments to the Post Entry Training Policy for Corporate and Social Services 
are approved.

2.2 The Sponsorship Policy for Social Services is approved.

2.3 Delegated authority be given to the Head of HR for any future amendments to this 
policy, in consultation with the Portfolio Member.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 The Post Entry Training policy (Appendix 1 & 2) has been in place since 2008 to 
ensure consistency and understanding for employees who undertake training which 
requires either a financial or time commitment.

3.2 The policy has been reviewed to ensure it is in line with other policies within the 
Council to ensure consistency and to ensure that the process is clarified.

3.3 The Social Services Sponsorship policy (Appendix 3) is a new policy to ensure 
clarity and understanding for those employees who are studying for their Social Work 
Degree which MTCBC has sponsored.

3.4 The Community and Children’s Services Group operate an annual programme of 
sponsorship and support for self-funding onto the Social Work Degree course with 
the Open University in Wales.  This creates the ability to ‘grow our own’ qualified 
social workers and retain them in employment upon qualification and for some time 
thereafter.  This policy ensures that there is a clearly planned and agreed process for 
students to experience a successful transition to their first social work post, to 
commence their chosen career, upon graduation.

4.0 MAIN CHANGES TO POST ENTRY TRAINING POLICY

4.1 Mileage expenses will be paid in accordance with the Councils Travel and 
Subsistence policy together with parking fees, tolls, etc. that are actually incurred.  
This is applicable to the Corporate policy and Social Services.

4.2 In consideration of the leave of absence/financial assistance given by the Council, 
employees should serve the Council for a period of 24 calendar months from the 
date on which the qualification is obtained, always provided that there is a post 
available.  If the individual leaves the Council voluntarily before this period is 
complete, they will have to repay some or all of the monies paid to them.

Within 12 Months 100%

Page 54



Within 12-18 Months 50 %
Within 18-24 Months 25%

This is applicable to the Corporate policy and Social Services.

Staff wishing to attend a Training Course should complete a Staff Learning 
Agreement and agree to the section referring to paying back any monies should they 
leave the local authority within 2 years.

4.3 The new Sponsorship policy (Appendix 3) for Social Worker degree should be read 
and agreed by all students before commencing the programme.  It provides 
guidance to students, Managers and the HR team on how to manage the process of 
securing a post as a qualified Social Worker.  Its aim is to provide a consistent and 
transparent approach, ensuring that there is as smooth a transition as possible whilst 
ensuring compliance with registration requirements and the Council’s Equal 
Opportunities policies

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

5.1 There will be a minor mileage increase which is managed within departmental 
budgets. There is no other financial implication to this report being approved.

6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Positive 
Impacts

Negative 
Impacts

Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 1 of 4 0 of 4 3 of 4

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working:

 Long term
 Prevention
 Integration
 Collaboration
 Involvement

5 of 5 0 of 5 0 of 5

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10

4. Biodiversity 0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1

Summary:
The main positive impacts are consistency in both Corporate and Social Services Post Entry 
Training Policies and a clear process for anyone undertaking the Social Work Degree.  These 
positively impact of the Council’s wellbeing objectives and the 5 ways of working.

Page 55



No negative impacts have been identified.

GARETH CHAPMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE,

AND CORPORATE SERVICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 56



1

Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough Council
Human Resources 
Department

Post Entry Training Policy 
and Staff Learning 

Agreement
Page 57



2

CONTENTS PAGE

1.0 Principles of the Scheme
1.1 Study Attendance
1.2 Study Leave in preparation for Examination or Assessment
1.3 Examination Attendance
1.4 Award Ceremonies
1.5 Travelling Allowance
1.6 Fees
1.7 Provision of Books, Equipment and Typing
1.8 Subsistence
1.9 General

3

2.0 Procedure 6

3.0 Application Form for Training Course 7

4.0 Staff Learning Agreement Form 8

Page 58



3

1.0 Principles of the Scheme 

This scheme applies to all permanent employees of the Council regardless of the negotiating 
body governing the employee, except for school based staff in LMS arrangements and staff 
undertaking a Social Care Degree within the Integrated Adult Services Directorate.

As much effort as possible will be made to accommodate employees under  the Post Entry 
Training Scheme, but obviously this will be subject to the needs of the service and as resources 
allow.

The types of courses which this scheme covers are courses which require either a financial or 
time commitment from the Authority on an  on-going basis.  It does not include one off training 
courses which are booked on an ad hoc basis.

The Staff Learning Agreement scheme is managed centrally by the Human Resources 
Department.

This scheme is a local agreement that supersedes the national agreement.

1.1 Study Attendance

a) Attendance at College or other place of study

or

b) Half day every 2 weeks to support distance learning/correspondence courses, ensuring 
that this does not exceed the number of days allowed for an equivalent college based 
course.  This time should be taken at Council premises or at a place approved by the 
employee’s manager.

1.2 Study leave in preparation for examination or assessment

a) For staff attending courses where assessment is by examination, the entitlement will be 
1-day leave for each examination, up to a maximum of 5 days per academic year.

b) For courses where assessment is by another method e.g. theses, dissertations, viva’s 
etc. staff will be entitled to a maximum of 2 days study leave per academic year.  

c) For staff completing distance learning or correspondence courses the entitlement will be 
up to a maximum of 4 days per academic year.  

This should be agreed with your line manager.

NB. Study leave will not be granted for re-sitting examinations or second attempts at   
dissertations etc.  

1.3 Examination Attendance

The period of the examination together with reasonable travelling time.

Page 59



4

1.4 Awards Ceremonies

The time required for the ceremony, including reasonable travelling time, up to a maximum of 
one day and should be agreed with your line manager.

1.5 Travelling Allowance

Travel will be reimbursed by the cheapest practical method.  The Council will only reimburse 
travel costs in excess of those normally incurred in travelling to work.

a) Second class return rail or bus fare (a ticket or receipt should be obtained), or

b) Mileage expenses in accordance with the Councils Travel and Subsistence policy 
together with parking fees, tolls, etc. that are actually incurred. 

1.6 Fees

The following fees associated with approved post entry training courses will be paid.

a) Enrolment fees

b) Registration fees

c) Examination entry fees - for first attempts only. A further attempt will be paid for only 
when the examination is successfully passed.

d) Exemption fees where exemptions are actually gained.

e) Other joining fees associated with the approved Post Entry Training Course.

1.7 Provision of books, equipment and typing

a) Reimbursement for books (that are set as essential reading), equipment and typing will not 
exceed the maximum allowance of £70 per annum.  All claims must be supported by 
receipts.

NB. Before purchasing books employees should check that the books are not available from 
within the directorate.  All books and equipment will be passed in good order to the employing 
department at the end of the training course.

b) Where typed submissions are an essential feature of the course departmental 
resources may be used if available. However, staff should complete this work in their 
own time.  Where this is not available, approval will be given to use external resources, 
reimbursement subject to a) above.

c) Consumables such as paper, ring binders, calculator, batteries, laminators etc., are items 
for which reimbursement cannot be claimed.

Page 60



5

1.8 Subsistence

Subsistence will not be paid in respect of Post Entry Training Courses.  Where an overnight 
stay is required only the cost of the accommodation will be reimbursed.

1.9 General

a. Claims should be made on the appropriate form which can be found on the Intranet and 
submitted to the administration section in your directorate.

b. All claims must be accompanied by original receipts (photocopies are acceptable for 
mileage claims).

c. Claims are subject to a minimum claim of £20.00 (except for a final claim).  Claims for 
travelling cannot be submitted more frequently than termly.

d. Claims will not be processed until the employee has approval to participate in the Post 
Entry Training Course and signed a Learning Agreement.

e. In consideration of the leave of absence/financial assistance given by the Council, 
employees should serve the Council for a period of 24 calendar months from the date on 
which the qualification is obtained, always provided that there is a post available.  If the 
individual leaves the Council voluntarily before this period is complete, they will have to 
repay some or all of the monies paid to them.

Within 12 Months 100%
Within 12-18 Months 50 %
Within 18-24 Months 25%

How will this be paid?

After notice given, this will be discussed with the line manager.  It may be possible to arrange 
payment by instalment.  Any repayment may be deducted from salary or final salary or 
recovered before last day of service.

If you have any queries on the any of the points in this document please contact Human 
Resources.

Page 61



6

2.0     Procedure

2.1 Staff wishing to attend a Training Course should complete a Staff Learning Agreement, 
available from Human Resources and on the Intranet.

2.2 When completed this form should be passed to the employees manager for 
authorisation. It is vital that both the holders of the expenses budget and the training 
budget sign the form.

2.3 The staff learning agreement form should then be passed to Human Resources for their 
records.

2.4 If the employee does not wish to sign this agreement then neither leave of absence nor 
financial support will be provided.

2.5 To claim expenses as detailed in this police please refer to the expenses policy.

 

If you have any queries relating to Post Entry Training and Staff Learning Agreement, 
please contact Human Resources.

Page 62



7

APPLICATION FORM FOR POST ENTRY TRAINING COURSE

Flowchart Responsibility Additional Information

All employees wishing to attend a 
Post Entry Training Course must 
complete a staff learning 
agreement form with 
authorisation from Manager.
Employee to sign agreement.

Employee and Manager Post Entry Training policy and 
staff learning agreement can be 
found in the Intranet site or from 
Human Resource department.

Staff Learning Agreement to be 
sent to Human Resources

Employee Note – all information must be 
completed or application cannot 
be processed. 

Copy of signed staff learning 
agreement will be put on their HR 
file.

Human Resource, Employee and 
Manager

Employee and Managers should 
read policy.  

Note for Employee and Manager

Please note that the Employee must adhere to the terms and conditions of the agreement or they may be 
required to pay part or whole of the fees paid for by the Authority.

Page 63



8

Staff Learning Agreement Form for Training Course

Name : _____________________________________________________________________

Address :  __________________________________________________________________

Designation : ___________________________________________  Ext. No. : ____________

Department : ________________________________________________________________

Directorate : _________________________________________________________________

Name of Course : _____________________________________________________________

Length of Course : ____________________ Module/Year : __________________________

Name of academic institution to be attended if any :  __________________________________

Level of support requested :  (please tick)

Financial only : _____          Full Day Release : ____          Part Day Release : ____

Other (please specify) : __________________________________________________

Day(s) of attendance : _________________________________________

Times of Attendance : _________________________________________

To be completed by the Employee:

I agree to attend the training as set out in the training plan and I agree that should I decide to leave the 
organisation within 2 years of completing the training, I  will pay any monies due in respect of the policy.

Signature of the Employee                                                         Date:

To be completed by the Line Manager:
I agree that the above named employee can attend the specified Training Course at the level of support 
requested.  There is sufficient money in the budget available to support the employee on this course.

Please state the benefits to the Authority of the individual attending the course:

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

Signature of Line Manager: _____________________   Date : ________________

Signature of Head of Department: ______________________________________________

Expenses Budget Financial Code ________________________________________________

Page 64



POST ENTRY TRAINING 
SCHEME  

Social Work Degree (only)

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
Human Resources Department

Page 65



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
2

Contents

1.0 PRINCIPLES OF THE SCHEME ………………….…………………………………………3
1.1 Taught days at University or mandatory tutorial days
1.2 Additional study time
1.3 Study leave in preparation for examinations
1.4 Exam attendance
1.5 Attendance at Degree Ceremonies
1.6 Travelling Allowance
1.7 Fees
1.8 Provision of Books
1.9 Subsistence
1.10    Travel Claims

2.0 PROCEDURE…………………………………….………………………………………………6

3.0 APPLICATION FORM FOR POST ENTRY TRAINING COURSE….………………..……7

4.0 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CLAIM FORM…..……………………………………………….8

5.0 AGREEMENT FOR POST ENTRY TRAINING……………………………………………..10

Page 66



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
3

1.0 Principles of the Scheme 

This Post Entry Training (PET) Scheme applies to all permanent employees of the Council who 
are sponsored by Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) to undertake the Degree in 
Social Work. The scheme and associated agreements will remain in effect until the completion 
of the degree and the subsequent 2 year period as identified in clause 4 of the Agreement or 
until the employee leaves the employ of MTCBC.

The PET scheme is managed centrally by the Human Resources Department.

This scheme is a local agreement that supersedes the national agreement.

1.1 Taught days at University and/or mandatory tutorial days. 

Candidates with the Open University (OU) will be allowed time off from work to attend all 
mandatory workshops which occur during their normal working hours. OU workshops 
which take place when the candidate is not normally working will be attended in their own 
time.  

1.2.      Additional study time.

     Candidates with the OU will be allowed ½ a day every two weeks for each 60 credit 
Degree module being undertaken. A candidate who is undertaking two degree modules 
(120 credits) in one year will be allowed ½ a day a week study time.

1.3 Study leave in preparation for examinations.

For staff attending modules which include assessment by examination, the entitlement 
will be 1-day study leave for each examination, up to a maximum of 5 days per academic 
year.  

NB: Study leave will not be granted for re-sitting examinations.

1.4 Examination Attendance

Candidates will be allowed time off from work for the period of the examination together 
with reasonable travelling time.

1.5 Attendance at Degree Ceremonies

Candidates will be allowed time off from work to attend a degree ceremony, including 
reasonable travelling time, up to a maximum of one day. 

1.6 Travelling Allowance

Travel will be reimbursed by the cheapest practical method.  The Council will only 
reimburse travel costs in excess of those normally incurred in travelling to work.

a) Second class return rail or bus fare (a ticket or receipt should be obtained), or

b) Mileage expenses in accordance with the Councils Travel and Subsistence policy 
together with parking fees, tolls, etc. that are actually incurred. 

Page 67



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
4

1.7 Fees

The following fees associated with approved post entry training courses will be paid.

a) Enrolment/registration fees

b) Course fees

c) Examination entry fees - for first attempts only. A further attempt will be paid for only 
when the examination is successfully passed.

d) Exemption fees where exemptions are actually gained.

e) Other joining fees associated with the approved Post Entry Training Course.

1.8 Provision of books.

a) Reimbursement for books (that are set as essential reading), will not exceed the 
maximum allowance of £70 per annum.  All claims must be supported by receipts. 

NB. Before purchasing books employees should check that the books are not available 
from within the directorate.  All books and equipment will be passed in good order to the 
employing department at the end of the training course.

b) Consumables such as paper, ring binders calculator batteries etc., are items for which 
reimbursement cannot be claimed.

1.9 Subsistence

Subsistence will not be paid in respect of Social Work Degree training.   

1.10 Travel Claims

a) Claims should be made on the appropriate form which can be found on the Intranet.

b) Once completed, the forms should be authorised by the budget holder/manager and 
passed to the Workforce Development Team.

c) Once endorsed , the forms should be passed to the relevant budget holder for 
authorisation as follows:

i. Where the employee is placed in a Local Authority placement in Merthyr Tydfil, 
then the budget holder for that service will meet the costs of travel expenses and 
authorise payment

ii. Where the employee is placed in a non-Local Authority placement in Merthyr
Tydfil, then the budget holder of the employee’s substantive post will meet the 
costs of travel expenses and authorise payment

iii. Where  the employee has a placement outside Merthyr Tydfil then the budget
holder of the employee’s substantive post will met the costs of travel expenses 
and authorise payment

Page 68



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
5

d) Once authorised all forms should be sent to payroll for processing.

e) All claims must be accompanied by original receipts (photocopies are acceptable for 
mileage claims).

f) Claims are subject to a minimum claim of £20.00 (except for a final claim).  Claims for 
travelling cannot be submitted more frequently than termly.

g) Claims will not be processed until the employee has approval to participate in the Post 
Entry Training Course and signed a Post Entry Training Agreement.

h) In consideration of the day release/financial assistance given by the Council, employees 
should serve the Council for a period of 24 calendar months from the date on which the 
qualification is obtained. If the individual leaves the Council before this period is 
complete, they will have to repay some or all of the monies paid to them as identified in 
clause 9 of the Agreement for Post Entry Training and detailed in the Sponsorship policy 
2018.

Within 12 Months 100%
Within 12-18 Months 50 %
Within 18-24 Months 25%

How will this be paid?

After notice given, this will be discussed with the line manager.  It may be possible to arrange 
payment by instalment.  Any repayment may be deducted from salary or final salary or 
recovered before last day of service.

If you have any queries on the any of the points in this document please contact the Workforce 
Development Team.

Page 69



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
6

2.0 Procedure

2.1 Staff wishing to attend a Post Entry Training Course will be sent a Post Entry Training 
Application Form, from the Workforce Development Team.

2.2 When completed this form should be passed to the employee’s manager for 
authorisation, and then forwarded to the Workforce Development Team.  It is vital that 
both the holders of the expenses budget and the training budget sign the form.

2.3 When approved the employee will be notified in writing stating that approval will be 
           dependent on them signing a Post Entry Training Agreement.  If the employee does not      
           wish to sign this agreement then support for secondment for the Social Work Degree will 
           not be granted.

2.4 Following the employee signing the Post Entry Training Agreement, confirmation will be 
sent to the employee, the line manager and the Human Resources Department and a 
copy kept on the individual’s personal file.  Prior to this notification leave of absence 
should not be granted to the employee, nor any financial assistance paid either to the 
employee or to any academic institution in relation to the employees training.   

2.5 Financial Assistance Claim Forms (PRD 16d) are available on the Intranet and are also 
kept in the administration sections of all Directorates.  These forms need to be completed 
in order for an employee to claim Post Entry Training Expenses.  Post Entry Training 
Expenses should not be claimed by any other means.  Reference should be made to the 
details in this document when completing the Financial Assistance Claim Form.  All 
training expenses are paid by the appropriate Department by using the BACS system. 

If you have any queries relating to Post Entry Training, please contact the Workforce 
Development Team.

Page 70



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
7

APPLICATION FORM FOR POST ENTRY TRAINING COURSE

Flowchart Responsibility Additional 
Information

All employees wishing to 
attend a Post Entry Training 
Course must complete an 
application form with 
authorisation from Budget 
holder/Manager.

Employee and Manager Post Entry Training Course 
can be found in the Intranet 
site or from Workforce 
Development Team.

Application form to be sent 
to Workforce Development 
Team for information.  

Workforce Development 
Team to send to Human 
Resources

Employee Note – all information must 
be completed or application 
cannot be processed. 

Workforce Development 
Team send a copy to the 
employee, the line manager 
and Human Resources. 

Workforce Development 
Team

Employee to sign agreement 
and return completed form 
to Workforce Development 
Team.

Employee Note: Employee must read 
the agreement handbook 

Managers should be aware of 
the terms and conditions.

Copy of signed agreement 
will be provided to the 
Employee, the line manager 
and Human Resources and a 
copy will be kept on the 
personal file.

Workforce Development 
Team

.  

Note for Employee and Manager

Please note that the Employee must adhere to the terms and conditions of the agreement or they 
may be required to pay part or whole of the fees paid for by the Authority.

Post Entry Training Courses Financial Assistance Claim Forms

All Post Entry Training Course Financial Assistance Claim Forms are available on the Intranet.  
Completed forms to be reviewed by the Workforce Development Team and then authorised by the 

employee’s line manager accompanied by mileage forms and returned to payroll for payment.

Page 71



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
8

Application Form for Post Entry Training Course

Name: _____________________________________________________________________

Address:  __________________________________________________________________

Designation: ___________________________________________  Ext. No: ____________

Department: ________________________________________________________________

Directorate: _________________________________________________________________

Name of Course: _____________________________________________________________

Length of Course: ____________________ Module/Year: __________________________

Name of academic institution to be attended if any: __________________________________

Level of support requested:  (please tick)

Financial only: _____          Full Day Release: ____          Part Day Release: ____

Other (please specify): __________________________________________________

Day(s) of attendance: _________________________________________

Times of Attendance: _________________________________________

Signature: __________________________________   Date: ______________________

To be completed by the Employee:

I agree to attend the training as set out in the training plan and I agree that should I decide to leave the 
organisation within 2 years of completing the training, I will pay any monies due in respect of the policy.

Signature of the Employee                                                         Date:

To be completed by the Line Manager:
I agree that the above named employee can attend the specified Post Entry Training Course at 
the level of support requested.  There is sufficient money in the budget available to support the 
employee on this course in relation to travel expenses.

Please state the benefits to the Authority of the individual attending the course:

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________
Page 72



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
9

___________________________________________________________________________

Signature of Department Budget holder: _____________________   Date: ________________

Name of Department Budget Holder: ______________________________________________

Expenses Budget Financial Code ________________________________________________

To be completed by the Training Budget Holder

Signature of Training Budget Holder: _____________________   Date: _________________

Name of Training Budget Holder: _________________________________________________

Training Budget Financial Code:_____________________________________________   

Date: ______________  Signed: _____________________
 

Page 73



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
POST ENTRY TRAINING COURSES

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE CLAIM FORM

This form should be completed with reference to the Post Entry Training Scheme Terms of Assistance.

Council Minute Authorising attendance ________________________________

Suppliers Reference – Post Entry Training Expenses
Voucher No.
Creditor No.
Prefix Expenditure Code Amount

£                      :
£                      :
£                      :

                                                                                               TOTAL           £                     :                      
Checked / Marked off
Certified Date
Input By

Applicant’s Surname:__________________________ Forename(s): ___________________________

Address:___________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________

Directorate in which employed:__________________________________________________________

Position: _________________________________ Fixed Centre (place of work): __________________ 

Course undertaken:___________________________________________________________________  

Academic Institution enrolled: __________________________________________________________

Times of Attendance: _________________________________________________________________

P
age 74



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
11

Claim for Fees

Details of Claim Amount
£ P

Enrolment Fees (receipts to be attached)
Registration Fees (receipts to be attached) 
Exemption Fees (receipts to be attached) 
Correspondence or other Fees (receipts to be attached) 
Examination Entry Fees (receipts to be attached )
Is this your first attempt                             Yes/No
If “no” were you successful on this occasion                                                  
                                                                   Yes/No
                                                              TOTAL

Details of Text Books - claims should not exceed £70 and all receipts must be attached. 

Name of Book £ P

TOTAL

P
age 75



P
age 76



Travelling - The Council will only reimburse costs in excess of those normally incurred in travelling to work.  Travel will be 
reimbursed by the cheapest practical method.  Full details of all journeys are required for reimbursement.  An additional sheet can 
be attached if required.  Copies of petrol receipts must be attached.

Period Number of 
attendance’s 

Total miles Travelled Method of 
transport 

Return fare from 
home/work to 

college.

Total 

From To From To £ P £ P

Applicant’s Signature _____________________________________________ Date: _____________

Certified By: (Employing Department)________________________________ Date: ______________

I certify that the student has attended for the periods/numbers of days specified above and that the student has completed 
his/her work satisfactorily.

Signature of Principal /Head of Department/Course Tutor: _______________________________________

Date: _______________________________

P
age 77



Agreement for Post Entry Training – Social Work Degree

This agreement is entered into on the first  day of September in the year Two Thousand and 
Eighteen  between Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (hereafter called “the Council”) and  
............................................................of.................................................................. (hereafter 
called “the Employee”).
This agreement is between the Employee who is undertaking a Post Entry Training Course and 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council which has agreed to assist financially on the following 
terms:

1. The Council will give the necessary day release and will financially assist the Employee to 
undertake the TRAINING COURSE.  During such periods of training the Council will pay the 
Employee the salary appropriate to the post held at any time and provide assistance towards 
expenditure approved by the Council and incurred by the employee by reason of his 
attendance at academic institutions and for the purpose of sitting examinations, as detailed in 
the Terms of Assistance.

2. The Employee shall comply with the regulations of the academic institutions attended and 
shall diligently pursue all studies and shall properly carry out to the best of their ability all 
lawful instructions of the persons instructing at the academic institution and shall attend all 
lectures and requisite examinations.

3. The Council’s obligation under this Agreement shall be subject to the receipt by the Council 
of satisfactory reports from the academic institution and the Employee’s work, conduct and 
progress there together with satisfactory performance of duties whilst at work.

4. In consideration of the day release and the financial assistance given by the Council after 
completion of training the Employee shall serve the Council for a minimum of twenty four 
calendar months from the date on which the qualification is obtained, always provided there 
is a post available.

5. The employee agrees to the policy for appointing sponsored and supported self-funding 
social work graduates into qualified Social Worker posts see appendix A Social Work 
Sponsorship Policy.

6. If the Employee for any reason not previously mentioned is, in the opinion of the Council, 
unable or unfit to carry out the training or duties, the Council may terminate this Agreement 
without notice.

7. During the currency of this Agreement the Employee will remain subject to the rules and 
regulations of the Council.

8. The Employee acknowledges and admits that the Council have undertaken to grant them day 
release and to assist them financially with their training on the express understanding that 
they will serve the Council for a period of twenty four calendar months from the date of the 
award.

9. The Employee acknowledges that if he should on his/her own accord, but not on ill health or 
at the insistence of the Council, discontinue training or leaves the Authority before completing 

Page 78



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Post Entry Training Documentation 2016
15

the course of training the Employee will repay to the Council all sums expended by the 
Council by way of fees and allowances for the whole duration of the course, not just 
applicable to that year (but excluding salary) under clause 1.

10.If during the period of twenty four calendar months following the completion of the training 
the employee should leave the service of the Council voluntary or for any of the reasons 
referred to in this agreement they shall repay to the Council.  Please see 1.10 point (h) of the 
Post Entry Training policy which details the payment to be repaid.

11.Where repayment is required the Council have the right to recover all or part of outstanding  
     costs / payments / expenses / from the pay of the Employee whom Training is agreed.  

12.Nothing in this agreement shall adversely affect the Contract of Employment subsisting 
between the Authority and the Employee.

13.The Authority does not, upon completion of the award, guarantee the employee a position 
commensurate with the award. 

14. In the event that the employee is not appointed to a social work post then the employee will 
remain in their substantive post.

15.The agreement will remain in place for the duration of the authorities’ sponsorship of the 
employee and the subsequent 2 year period as identified in clause 4 and 5.

Signed: ___________________________________
                     Regional Workforce Development Manager

          On behalf of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

I  .................................................................... do hereby fully accept the terms and conditions of 
the Post Entry Training Agreement herein.  I authorise the Council to make any necessary 
deductions directly from my salary in the event that I breach any of the terms and conditions 
agreed. 

Signed by the employee ___________________________________
                  
Designation _____________________________________________
 
Line Manager   ____________________________________                                       

Name: (Please Print) _______________________________________________

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Merthyr Tydfil County 
Borough Council
Human Resources 
Department

Social Work Sponsorship 
Policy 

Page 81



2

CONTENTS PAGE

1.0 Introduction 3

2.0 Procedure 3

3.0 Preference Form 4

4.0 Process Flow Chart 5

Page 82



3

Policy for appointing sponsored and supported self-funding social work graduates into 
qualified social work posts.

1.0 Introduction

The Community and Children’s Services Group operate an annual programme of sponsorship 
and support for self-funding onto the Social Work Degree course with the Open University in 
Wales.  This creates the ability to ‘grow our own’ qualified social workers and retain them in 
employment upon qualification and for some time thereafter.  This policy ensures that there is a 
clearly planned and agreed process for students to experience a successful transition to their 
first social work post, to commence their chosen career, upon graduation.

For the purpose of this document, these employees are referred to as ‘students’.  This 
document is made available to prospective students as part of their application pack.

The primary purpose of this procedure is to ensure that the resources committed by Merthyr 
Tydfil County Borough Council to its students during the course of their studies are maximized 
within the organization, to the benefit of MTCBC and the community it serves, whilst at the 
same time positively supporting staff retention initiatives by ensuring our students have a 
positive first experience in Social Work.

This procedure provides guidance to students, Managers and the HR team on how to manage 
the process of securing a post as a qualified Social Worker.  Its aim is to provide a consistent 
and transparent approach, ensuring that there is as smooth a transition as possible whilst 
ensuring compliance with registration requirements and the Council’s Equal Opportunities 
policies

2.0 Procedure

Prior to the course ending in Sept, the nominated officer from Workforce Development Team 
will confirm by March to HR a list of students who are expected to qualify in that year.

Discussion between Workforce Development and HR around any students who have failed 
placements, or have experienced difficulties, which could result in them not successfully 
completing the course, will take place at this stage.

HR will provide the students listed with details of existing relevant social work vacancies from 
within the Council. From March such vacancies will be notified to students when they become 
available, with the opportunity to apply for these roles before going to public advert.  The 
students are expected to take joint responsibility for looking at, and applying for Social Work 
posts at this time, especially where they may not secure a post from the initial list.

There is an expectation that students will take up a Social Work post on qualification, or shortly 
afterwards, given the resources and commitment made to them whilst studying.  Furthermore 
there is a contractual term that the sponsored worker will remain employed by the Council in the 
Social Work profession for a 2 year period following graduation and a self-funding worker who 
has received support will remain employed by the Council in the Social Work profession for a 1 
year period following graduation.  If the Social Worker wants to leave during this period this 
could lead to the reclaiming of fees and/or salary on a sliding scale in line with details of the 
signed learning agreement within the Post entry training document.

Page 83



4

Individual preferences will need to be balanced with the needs of the Service, and therefore no 
guarantee can be given as to where students will be found a permanent post.  Wherever 
possible this policy will strive to support students in their career choice, as this is more likely to 
positively support longer-term retention.  However this will depend on the vacancies available 
prior to students completing their course.

The Council, via the Corporate Management Team reserves the right to offer a post 
based on the needs of the service, and ultimately may consider the reclaiming of fees 
where a newly qualified Social Worker declines offers of employment to a qualified 
position.

Relevant Team Managers will conduct student only internal interviews in order to determine 
graduates suitability for the particular social work post/discipline.  References will be requested 
from the individual’s line manager and the University.

Following the interviews, and where the interview panel make recommendations to appoint 
students to posts, conditional offers of appointment will be made, subject to confirmation of 
successful completion of the qualification, satisfactory references, pre-employment checks and 
successful registration as a Social Worker with Social Care Wales.

On confirmation of qualification and registration they will formally commence in the post, 
commencing on the appropriate qualified rate.  This change will be effective either from the 
date of their registration, or from their commencement date, if this date is later than the date of 
registration.  (In Social Work at this point the student will be entitled by law to use the title 
‘Social Worker’).

Team Managers and/or students may however request that students commence work in the 
team prior to their registration etc. being confirmed.  In such cases, they will be employed in 
temporary unqualified positions and will not be permitted to take the title of Social Worker until 
such time as they are successfully registered.  They will be referred to as Support Workers and 
will be paid at the appropriate unqualified rate.  In terms of continuity of employment and 
employment protection the student will move from their substantive post to their new post as 
soon as is practical, given their commitments to the University in the final year and the dates 
from which they can be available.

Where a student is unsuccessful in gaining a qualified social work post or fails to qualify, or is 
unable to register as a Social Worker, then they will continue in their substantive position.

Once this policy has been applied to a student and s/he has secured a permanent Social Work 
post within the Council, then this procedure will no longer be relevant to them.  Should they 
subsequently become interested in another Social Worker post in the Authority, then they would 
need to apply for that position in line with the procedures in place outside of this policy, 
regarding the recruitment and selection of staff.

Page 84



5

Appendix A

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council

Community & Children Services

Social Work Graduates

Indication of Preference Form

NAME:……………………………………………………………………………………..

WORK ADDRESS: ……………………………………………………………………...

Dear Colleague,

I understand you are expected to successfully complete your Social Work qualification in the 
forthcoming year.  In accordance with the Councils policy, related to the retention of you as a 
valuable resource, on the provision that you successfully complete your professional 
qualification, I have detailed below the vacancies currently available within MTCBC council.  
Please complete column 5, indicating your preference in order that I may make arrangements 
with the relevant Team Managers for interviews to take place.

Post Team/Location No of Hours Provisional 
Interview Date

Preference 
Number

Page 85



6

Procedure for appointing Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council staff who have been 
sponsored or supported to self-fund on the social work degree programme into qualified 
positions on completion of the qualification.

Prior to the 
course end 
Workforce 
Development 
confirms a list of 
students 
expected to 
qualify (March)

HR provides 
students with list 
of Social Work 
vacancies within 
Council 
(Ongoing)

Students 
complete form 
expressing 
preference for 
post/a Service 
area

HR arrange 
interviews and 
obtain 
references 
from line 
manager and 
university.

Relevant Team 
Managers 
conduct 
interviews to 
determine 
students 
suitability and 
make 
recommendation
sIf student is 
suitable, a 
conditional offer 
of appointment is 
made, subject to 
the necessary 
pre-employment 
checks

If the student is 
NOT suitable at 
all or fails to 
qualify, they 
return to their 
substantive post.

If the student 
declines the 
offer, then this 
may lead to 
reclaim of fees 
for each month 
they are not in a 
social work post 
up to 2 years for 
sponsored and 1 
year for those 
receiving 
support.

Page 86



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

FULL COUNCIL REPORT

To:  Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen

HELP FOR PENSIONERS SCHEME 2018

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 Welsh Government made funding available to Councils for each of the four            
years from 2009/10 to 2012/13 for the purposes of determining their own local             
scheme to provide assistance to pensioners with the payment of their Council tax. 

 
1.2     In 2013/14, Welsh Government decided to introduce a single pan Wales scheme to           

provide this support. The rationale being to avoid any inconsistencies arising from           
locally determined schemes.

1.3   In 2014/15, Welsh Government changed its approach once again and although           
Councils have been provided with a similar level of funding as in 2013/14, this was           
included in the Revenue Support Grant, leaving it up to individual Councils to          
determine their own scheme [or indeed to use the funding for any other purpose]. 

1.4    In December 2016, Council decided to continue with the scheme for financial year          
2017/18. A further decision now has to be made as to whether an award under the 
scheme will be made in respect of 2018/19.

    
1.5 A survey of all Welsh Councils has identified that no other Councils have           

operated a scheme for 2018/19.

1.6 The Council is provided with two options in para 4.1 and for the reasons set out in 
this report, the professional officer preferred option is Option 4.1 (a). 

Date Written 04th February 2019*
Report Author Mike Parry
Service Area Revenues
Exempt/Non Exempt Non - Exempt
Committee Date 20th February 2019

Page 87

Agenda Item 6



2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that

2.1 Councils instructions are requested.  

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Welsh Government has in previous years provided a specific grant for a national 
scheme to assist pensioners with payment of the Council Tax. These resources 
have, since 2014/15, been subsumed into the Council’s Revenue Support Grant 
allowing Councils to choose whether or not to provide such support in future.

3.2   For 2013/14, pensioners who were in receipt of partial Council Tax Reduction 
(CTR)received up to a maximum of £100. The total spend in Merthyr Tydfil was 
£88,414. The grant was means tested and during 2013/14, 986 pensioners received 
support to reduce their Council Tax under this scheme. 

3.3   The support was reduced to a maximum of £50.00 per claim in financial year            
2014/15 and has remained at that level for each of the subsequent financial years. 
As a result of this reduction, the total spend in Merthyr Tydfil in 2017/18 was 
£40,311. The grant was means tested and 818 pensioners received support to 
reduce their Council Tax under the scheme. 

4.0 RELEVANT ISSUES AND OPTIONS

4.1 Two options are proposed for consideration:

(a) Discontinue the scheme from 2018/19 in order to maintain a consistent approach 
with all other Councils.

(b) To continue the scheme as operated in 2017/18 by providing financial support up 
to a maximum of £50 per qualifying claim (0.96p per week).

4.2      If the scheme were to continue, the qualifying criteria are set out in Appendix 1.

4.3   Continuing the scheme as operated in 2017/18 would result in expenditure of    
approximately £41,000. Although the overall spend is significant, the financial         
detriment to each pensioner if the scheme were discontinued is low as the maximum 

           allowance is only £50.00 per claimant.

4.4  Claimants will continue to receive support through the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme.

4.5   A survey of all Welsh Councils has identified that no other Councils will be          
operating a scheme for 2018/19. 

4.6 Given the above and the current financial budget deficit the Council has to address 
the officers preferred option is Option 4.1 (a)

Page 88



5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

5.1 Based on 2017/18 figures the total cost to the Council for 2018/19 is estimated at
           £41,000 if payment continued up to a maximum of £50.

6.0 INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT

Positive 
Impacts

Negative 
Impacts

Not 
Applicable 

1. Merthyr Tydfil Well-being 
Objectives 0 of 4 0 of 4 4 of 4

2. Sustainable Development 
Principles - How have you 
considered the five ways of 
working:

 Long term
 Prevention
 Integration
 Collaboration
 Involvement

2 of 5 0 of 5 3 of 5

3. Protected Characteristics 
(including Welsh Language) 0 of 10 0 of 10 10 of 10

4. Biodiversity 0 of 1 0 of 1 1 of 1

Summary:

The main positive impacts are: 

The positive impact is low and purely of a financial nature. It does not impact all 
pensioners, only those who met the criteria set by the Council. As the maximum 
allowance is only up to £50 and only a small proportion of pensioners would qualify, the 
overall positive and negative impacts are low.

No negative impacts have been identified against the Well-being Objectives, the 
Sustainable Development Principles and Biodiversity.

ELLIS COOPER
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

& CORPORATE SERVICES 

Page 89



BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Integrated Impact 
Assessment

24th October 2018 Electronic Library

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 90



APPENDIX 1

Eligible candidates must:

 Be liable to pay Council Tax in respect of a chargeable dwelling, which 
was their sole or main residence on January 31st 2019.

 Be 60 years or older on January 31st 2019.

 Be in receipt of CTR on January 31st 2019.

 Not be in receipt of maximum CTR on January 31st 2019

 Be liable to pay Council Tax for that chargeable dwelling on January 31st 
2019.

NB - The maximum remittal will be restricted to the total net Council Tax liability for   
          the 2018/19 financial year. 

Page 91



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 109

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4a Full Council: 09/01/2019
	4b Full Council: 16/01/2019
	4c Cabinet: 16/01/2019
	4d Scrutiny : Joint Committee: 09/01/2019
	4e Audit: 09/01/2019
	4f Scrutiny : Joint Committee: 23/01/2019
	4g Audit: 23/01/2019
	4h Planning, Regulatory and Licensing: 10/01/2019
	4i Planning, Regulatory and Licensing: 06/02/2019
	4j Scrutiny : Learning and LAESCYP: 26/11/2018
	4k Scrutiny : Learning and LAESCYP: 17/12/2018
	4l Scrutiny : Learning and LAESCYP: 14/01/2019
	4m Scrutiny : Regeneration and Public Protection: 15/01/2019
	5 Post Entry Training Policy and Sponsorship Policy
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	6 Help for Pensioners Scheme 2018
	8 Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 – Update 2
	9 Update on the Reconfiguration of Adult Accommodation Services
	10 YMCA Redevelopment

